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FINANCIAL SECTION 



Bourgeois Bennett 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS l CONSULTANTS 

A LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Board of Directors, 
Hynes Charter School Corporation, 

New Orleans, Louisiana. 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Hynes Charter School Corporation 
(the "School") (a non-profit organization) which comprise the statement of financial position as of 
June 30, 2024, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the 
year then ended, and the notes to the financial statements. 

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of Hynes Charter School Corporation as of June 30, 2024, and the changes in its net assets, 
functional expenses, and its cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those 
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 
Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the School and to meet our 
other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinions. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free frorn material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 
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In preparing the financial statements, tnanagetnent is required to evaluate whether there are 
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise suhstantial doubt about the School's 
ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are 
available to be issued. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free froin material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute 
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally 
accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resultiiig from fraud is 
higher than for one resulting froin error, as fraud inay involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered 
material if there is a substantial likelihood that. individually or in the aggregate. they would influence 
the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements. 

In perthrming an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and 
Government Auditing Standards. we: 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the 
audit. 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to 
those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis. evidence regarding the 
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not I'm the pulpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the School's internal control. 
Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates inade by management, as well as evaluate the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 

• Conclude whether, iii our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the 
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the School's ability to continue as a going 
concern for a reasonable period of time. 

We are required to conununicate with those charged with governance regarding. among other 
matters, the planned scope aiid timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal 
control-related matters that we identified during the audit. 
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Report on Summarized Comparativ e Information 

We have previously audited the School's 2023 financial statements and expressed an 
unrnodified audit opinion on those audited financial statements in our report dated October 23, 2023. 
In our opinion, the summarized comparative inforination presented herein as of and for the year ended 
June 30, 2023, is consistent, in all inaterial respects, with the audited financial statements from which 
it has been derived. 

Supplementary Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of thrilling an opinion on the financial statements as a 
whole. The accornpanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards. as required by Title 2 U.S. 
Code ofFederal Regulations (CFR> Part 200. Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principlm 
and Aiidit Requirements Pr Federal Awards, is presented tbr purposes of additional analysis and is 
not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management 
and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to 
prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the financial stateinents and certain additional procedures, including comparing 
and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to 
prepare the financial statements or to the financial staternents themselves, and other additional 
procedures in accordance with auditing standards geiierally accepted in the United States of America. 
In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all inaterial respects, in relation to the financial 
statements as a whole. 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a 
whole. The supplemental schedules (pages 23 - 3 l are presented thr purposes of additional analysis 
and are not a required part of the financial statements. Schedule l is required by Louisiana Revised 
Statute 24:513(O3). Such information in the supplernental schedules is the responsibility of 
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records 
used to prepare the financial statements. The intbrmation has heen subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including 
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records 
used to prepare the financial staternents or to the financial staternents thernselves. and other additional 
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. 
In our opinion, the intbrmation is fairly stated in all inaterial respects in relation to the tinancial 
statements as a whole. 
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report, dated 
October 21, 2024 on our consideration of the School's internal control over financial reporting and on 
our test of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreement, 
and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control 
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion 
on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an 
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the School's 
internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

6̀1476' AeA1411* zz e 

Certified Public Accountants. 

New Orleans, Louisiana, 
October 21, 2024. 
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Exhibit A 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION  

Hynes Charter School Corporation 
New Orleans, Louisiana 

June 30, 2024 
(with comparative totals for 2023) 

 

2()24 2023 

ASSETS 

  

Cash S 9,890,250 $1(),937,6£2 
Cash reserved for student activities 606,611 482,141 
Grants and other receivables 796,891 2,6()7,977 
Prepaid expenses 38,102 56,802 
Investments 10,337,026 

 

Inventory 68,512 154,339 
Other assets 17,400 17,400 
Property and equipment, net 865,005 142,5()7 

Total assets S22,619,797 $14,398,848 

LIABILITIES 

  

Accounts payable S 1,897,004 $ 273,200 
Accnied expenses 1,221,081 1,134,12() 
Deferred revenue 156,249 150,305 

Total liabilities 3,274,334 1.557,625 

NET ASSETS 

  

Without donor restrictions 19,339,801 12,810,561 
With donor restrictions 5,662 30,662 

Total net assets 19,345,463 12.841,223 

Total liabilities and net assets S22,019.797 $14.398,848 

See notes to financial statements. 
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Exhibit B 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

Hynes Charter School Corporation 
New Orleans. Louisiana 

For the year ended June 30. 1014 
(with comparative totals for 2013) 

Revenues and Other Support 
Grants: 

Without 
Donor 

Restrictions 

With 
Donor 

Restrictions 
1014 

Totals 

2023 
Totals 
Only 

    

Federal S 4.703.934 S' S 4.703.934 S 5.489.099 
State 1,130 

 

1,130 

 

Other 18.994 

 

18.994 655.458 
State and local Minimum Foundation 

Program 22.131.106 

 

22.131.106 19.027.496 
Donations 62,434 27,114 89,548 101,020 
Student fees 

 

739.494 739.494 648.827 
Employee Retention Tax Credit 1,174,453 

 

1,174,453 1,816,059 
Miscellaneous revenue 297.014 

 

297.014 201.913 
Investment income 344,087 

 

344,087 

 

Net assets released from restrictions 791.608 (791.608) 

  

Total revenues and other support 1 9.514.760 ' 5 MOW 29.499.760 1 7.939.871 

Expenses 

    

Program services 20,227,430 

 

10,117,430 18,197,571 
Management and general 2.665.318 

 

2.665.318 2.682.085 
Fundraising -1,11-

  

17,771 26,040 

Total expenses )),9)(),51() 

 

11,910,5)0 20,905,696 

Increase (decrease) in net assets 
from operations 6,604,240 .000 6.579.240 7.034.176 

Contribution to Friends of Hynes for 
constmction of new campus (75,00(1) 

 

(75,000) (1,200,00(1) 

Increase (decrease) in net assets 6,529,240 (?5,000) 6,504,240 5,834,176 

Net Assets 

    

Beginning of year 12.810,561 30,661 12.841.223 7.007,047 

End of year S 19,339,801 S 5,667 S 19.345,463 S 12,841,223 

See notes to financial statements. 
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Exhibit C 

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 

Hynes Charter School Corporation 
New Orleans, limisiana 

For the year ended June 30, 2024 
(with comparative totals for 2023) 

  

2024 

 

2023 
Totals 
Only 

Program 
Services 

Mantillement 
and General Fundraisinp, 

Total 
Lxpenses 

Administrative fee $ 393,239 $ $ $ 393.239 $ 365,012 
Advertising 

 

13,395 

 

13,395 6.095 
Depreciation 30,94R 3.439 

 

34.387 25,220 
Disposal services 29.988 3332 

 

33.320 26,196 
Dues and fees 37.394 62,412 

 

99,806 71.362 
Employee benefits and 

payroll taxes 3,356.4-42 72(),793 6.340 4.083,575 3,916,108 
Equipment rental 42,775 13,058 

 

55,833 49,599 
Food service management 25.845 

  

25.R45 23,745 
Information technology 

services 382,881 9.597 

 

392.478 405,635 
Insurance 420.548 46,72R 

 

467,276 306,084 
Materials and supplies 1,893,923 24.129 

 

1,918.052 1.199,945 
Miscellaneous expense 15.067 289 

 

15,356 14,694 
Professional development 145,096 10.015 

 

155.111 251,367 
Professional services 992.761 135,80R 

 

1.128,569 761,388 
Repairs and maintenance 656.947 72,994 

 

729,941 716.206 
Salaries and wages 10,379,053 1,484.892 21,432 11,885.377 11.158,315 
Textbooks 196.633 

  

196,633 142,500 
Transportation 665,258 

  

665,258 758,963 
Travel 132.968 16.696 

 

149,664 150,419 
Utilities 429,664 47.741 

 

477.405 556,g43 

 

$20,227,430 $2,665,318 $27,772 $22,920,520 520,905,696 

See notes to financial statements. 
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Exhibit D 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

Hynes Charter School Corporation 
New Orleans, Louisiana 

For the year ended June 30, 2014 
(with comparative totals for 2023) 

 

2024 2023 

Cash Flows From Operating Activities 

  

Increase in net assets S 6,504,240 S 5,834,176 
Adjustments to reconcile increase in net assets to 

cash provided by operating activities: 

  

Depreciation 34.387 25,22(? 
Unrealized gain on investments (69.474) 

 

(Increase) decrease in assets: 

  

Grants receivahle 1,811,086 (46,221) 
Prepaid expenses 18,700 65,357 
Inventory 85,827 52,309 

Increase in liabilities: 

  

Accounts payable 1,623,£+U4 85,£►U5 
Accnied payroll liahilities 86,961 255,238 
Deferred revenue 5,944 4.254 

Net cash provided hy 
operating activities 10,101.475 6,276,138 

Cash Flows From Investing Activities 

  

Purchases of property and equipment (75(i,885) (78,422) 
Proceeds from maturities of investnients 22,738,957 

 

Purchases of investments (33,006,509) 

 

Net cash used in investine activities ( 11,024,437) (78,422) 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash (922,962) 6,197,716 

Cash 

  

Beginning of year I 1,419,823 5,222.107 

End of year S10,496,861 S11,419.823 

See notes to financial statements. 
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Exhibit E 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Hynes Charter School Corporation 
New Orleans, Louisiana 

June 30, 2024 and 1013 

Note 1 - ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

a. Organization 

Hynes Charter School Corporation (the "School") is a charter school organization 
incorporated on March 2. 2006 operating to provide all students with a safe and diverse 
learning conununity by empowering them to be proficient readers. writers. and critical 
thinkers. 

The School was granted a five-year charter for the Lakeview Campus by Orleans Parish 
School Board (C)PSB) in 2006. The charter was renewed for an additional six years 
effective July I, 2011, and an additional ten years effective July 1, 2017. 

The School was granted a five-year charter for the UNO Campus by OPSB in 2019 and 
began principal operations at this location during the year ended June 30, 2020. The 
charter was renewed for an additional five years effective July 1, 2024. 

The School was granted a five-year charter for the Parkview Campus by ()PSB in 2021 
effective through June 30. 2026, and began principal operations at this location during 
the year ending June 30, 2022. 

b. Basis of Accounting 

The financial statements of the School have been prepared in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America On the accnial 
basis of accounting. The Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) is the accepted 
standard setting body for establishing not-for-profit accounting and financial reporting 
principles. 
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Exhibit E 
((:ontinued) 

Note 1 - ORGANIZATION A.ND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
(Continued) 

c. Financial Statement Presentation 

Net assets are classified based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed 
restrictions. Accordingly, iiet assets and changes therein are classified and reported as 
follows: 

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions - Support. revenue, and expenses for 
general operations. 

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions - Contributions and grants specifically 
authorized by the donor or grantor to be used for a certain purpose or to benefit a 
specific accounting period or contributions subject to donor-imposed restrictions 
and that are to be held in perpetuity by the School. 

d. Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America requires inanageinent to inake 
estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts of assets and liabilities 
and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements 
and reported arnounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. 
Accordingly, acnial results could differ from those estimates. 

e. Cash and Cash Equiv alents 

The School classifies as cash and cash equivalents all highly liquid debt instruments 
with an initial maturity of three inonths or less. As of June 30, 2024 and 2023, there 
were no cash equivalents. 

f. Grants Receivable 

Grants receivables are stated at the amount management expects to collect from 
outstanding balances. The financial statements do iiot include an estimate for allowance 
for expected credit losses. Management believes that all receivables are fully 
collectible. 

g. Inventory 

Inventory is carried at the lower of cost or net realizable value and, as of June 30, 2024 
and 2023, consisted of textbooks and other teaching materials and supplies. 
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Exhibit E 
((:ontinued) 

Note 1 - ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
(Continued) 

h. Investments 

Investments in U.S. Government and Government Agency bonds and notes and the 
mutual fund are stated at fair market value. 

i. Property, Equipment, and Depreciation 

Property and equipment are capitalized at cost and updated for additions and 
retirements during the year. The net carrying ainount is considered the net realizahle 
vahle. Donated property and equipment are recorded at fair market value as of the date 
received. The School maintains a capitalization threshold of $5,000 for equipment in 
accordance with the Louislana Accounting and Uniform Governmental Handbook. 
Improvements are capitalized., the costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not 
add to the value of the asset or materiality extend an asset's life are expensed. All 
reported equipment is depreciated using the straight-line method over three to ten years. 

j. Deferred Revenue 

The School obtains payinent of a $95 student activity fee per student and a W0 French 
immersion fee, as applicahle. at the time of registration of the subsequent year, during 
the sprin€ of the current year. Revenues from these fees are recognized in the year in 
which they are earned. Fees collected in the current year that apply to the subsequent 
year are deferred. 

k. Revenue Recognition 

Donations received are recorded as increases in net assets with donor restrictions or net 
assets without donor restrictions, depending on the existence andior nature of any donor 
restrictions. 

Donor-restricted support is reported as an increase in net assets with donor restrictions, 
depending on the nature of the restriction. When a restriction expires (that is, when a 
stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished). net assets with 
donor restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and reported in 
the Stateinent of Activities as net assets released from restrictions. 

Revenues frorn federal and state grants are recorded when the School has a right to 
reimbursement under the related grant, generally corresponding to the incurring of grant 
related costs by the School, or when earned under the terms of the grants. 
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Exhibit E 
((:ontinued) 

Note 1 - ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
(Continued) 

k. Revenue Recognition (C'ontinued) 

The School's primary source of funding is through the Minimum Foundation Program 
(MFP) funded hy the State Public. School Fund and OPSB. For the years ended June 30, 
2024 and 2023, the School received $7,506,843 and $7,386,194, respectively, from the 
state and $12,967,015 and $10,616,633, respectively, from OPSB, in addition to 
$1,fi57.?4£+ and $1.O24,669 received during the years ended June 30. 2024 and 2023, 
which related to prior years. MFP revenue accounts for 75% and 68% of the School's 
total revenue for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. 

I. Functional Allocation of Expenses 

As required under the FASB Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2016-14. "Not-
Pr-Profit Entities" (Topic 958), the School has presented a statement of functional 
expense as part of its audited financial statements. The financial statements of the 
School report certain categories of expenses that are attributable to more than one 
program or supporting function. The majority of expenses are allocated based on actual 
time and effort. However, certain depreciation, disposal services, dues and fees, 
equipment rental, insurance, materials and supplies, professional services, repairs and 
maintenance, aiid utilities require allocation based on the square footage of the school 
campus. Information technolo€y services are allocated based on a count of all computer 
equipment. Certain salaries and wages and the related einployee benefits and payroll 
taxes are allocated based on management's estiinate of time and effort. 

m. Tax Matters 

The School has received a tax-exempt ruling under section 501(c)(3) from the Internal 
Revenue Service and. accordingly. is iiot subject to Federal income tax unless the 
School has unrelated trade or business income. 

Accounting standards provide detailed guidance tbr financial statement recognition, 
measurement, and disclosure of uncertain tax positions recognized in an entity's 
financial statements. These standards require an entity to recognize the financial 
statement impact of a tax position when it is more likely than not that the position will 
not be sustained upon exainination. As of June 30, 2024, management of the School 
believes that it has no uncertain tax positions that qualify tbr either recognition or 
disclosure in the financial statements. Tax years ended June 30, 2021 and later remain 
subject to examination by the taxing authorities. 
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Exhibit E 
((:ontinued) 

Note 1 - ORGANIZATION A.ND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
(Continued) 

n. Recently Issued Accounting Standards 

Measurement of Credit Losses 

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-13, "Financial Instruments - Credit 
Losses" (Topic 326). The ASU introduces a new credit loss methodology, Current 
Expected Credit Losses (CECL), which requires earlier recognition of credit losses, 
while also providing additional transparency about credit risk. Since its original 
issuance in 2016, the FASB has issued several updates to the original ASU. 

The CECL methodology utilizes a lifetiine "expected credit loss" measurement 
objective for tlie recognition of credit losses for loans. held-to-maturity securities, and 
other receivables at the tirne the tinancial asset is originated or acquired. The expected 
credit losses are adjusted each period for changes in expected lifetime credit losses. The 
methodology replaces the multiple existing impairment methods in current GAAP, 
which generally require that a loss be incurred before it is recognized. For available-for-
sale securities where fair value is less than cost. credit-related impairment. if any. is 
recognized through an allowance for credit losses and adjusted each period for changes 
in credit risk. The ASU was adopted for the year ended June 30, 2024, and its adoption 
did iiot have a rnaterial impact on the financial statements. 

o. Subsequent Events 

Managernent evaluates events occurring subsequent to the date of the financial 
statements in determining the accounting for and disclosure of transactions and events 
that affect the financial statements. Subsequent events have been evaluated through 
October 21, 2024, which is the date the financial statements were available to be issued. 

Note 2 - CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK 

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the School's deposits may 
not be returned to it. The School has a written policy for custodial credit risk. The School 
rnaintains its cash with a financial institution where the accounts are insured by Federal 
Deposit Insurance Corporation up to $250,000. As of June 30, 2024, the School's bank 
balances in excess of insured amounts was approximately $9,000,000. These deposits were 
uninsured and collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institutions' trust 
department or agent and are deerned to be held in the School's name. The School has not 
experienced any losses in such accounts in the past. By its examination of the financial 
institution's most recent quarterly Federal Financial Institution's Examination Council's 
(FFEIC) Uniform Bank Performance Report, management believes it is not exposed to any 
significant credit risk from cash. 
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Exhibit E 
((:ontinued) 

Note 3 - CASH RESERVED FOR STUDENT ACTIVITIES 

The School maintains separate bank accounts for student activities. The accounts are for 
collected student activity fees and Husky Care (before and afier-school care program) fees. 
Reserved student activity funds amounted to S606.611 and $482.141 as of June 30. 2024 
and 2023, respectively. and are reported as c.ash reserved for student activities in the 
Statements of Financial Position. 

Note 4 - GRANT AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 

Grant and other receivahles were comprised of the following as ofjune 30, 2024 and 2023: 

 

2024 2023 

Grant receivables: 

  

Elementary and Secondary School 
Emergency Relief (ESSER) $ 512,697 $ 1,698,932 

Title I 140,803 380,251 
Charter School Program 99,647 271,279 
Title II 9,811 42,309 
Title IV 1,735 20,570 
Direct Student Services (DSS) 1,188 

 

IDEA 

 

130,209 
High Cost Funds (HCF) 

 

18,548 

Total want receivables 765,881 2,562,098 

Other receivables 31,010 45,879 

Total grant and other receivables $ 796,891 $ 2,607,977 
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Exhibit E 
((:ontinued) 

Note 5 - INVESTMENTS 

Investments as of June 30, 2()24 are composed of the following: 

Fair Excess of 
Market Market 

Cost Value Over Cost 
U.S. Government and Government 

Agency honds and notes $ 10,141.L110 S 10,210,884 S 69,474 
Mutual fund 126,142 126,142 

$ 10,267,552 S 10.337.026 S 69,474 

Investment activity for the year ended June 30, 2024 is as follows: 

Excess of 
Market 

Cost Market Over Cost 

Balances as of June 30, 2024 S 10.267.552 S 10,337,026 S 69,474  

Increase in unrealized appreciation 
Interest and dividend income 
Advisor fees   

69,474 
278,429 

(3,816)  

   S 344,087       

Note 6 - FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 

The framework for measuring fair value provides a fair value hierarchy which prioritizes 
the inputs to valuation teclmiques used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the 
highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or 
liabilities (Level 1) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3). The three 
levels of the fair value hierarchy under the Financial Accounting Standards Board 
Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) Topic £+2t1, Fair Value Measurements are 
described as follows: 

Level 1 - Inputs to the valuation inethodology are unadjusted quoted prices for 
identical assets or liabilities in active markets that the School has the ahilitv 
to access. 
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Note 6 - FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 

Level 2 - Inputs to the valuation inethodology include: 

• quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active inarkets; 

• quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive 
markets. 

• inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or 
liability; 

• inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable 
market data hy correlation or other means. 

If the asset or liability has a specified (contractual) term. the Level 2 input 
must he observable for substantially the full term of the asset or liability. 

Level 3 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the 
fair value rneasurement. 

The asset's fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the 
lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Valuation 
techniques maximize the use of relevant observable inputs and minimize the use of 
unobservable inputs. 

• US. Government and Government Agency Bonds and Notes: Valued at the closing 
price reported on the active market on which the individual securities are traded. 
These are included in Level l of the fair value hierarchy. 

• Mutual Valued at the daily closing price as reported by the fund. Mutual fund 
held hy the School are an open-end mutual fund that is registered with the Securities 
and Exchange Commission. This fund is required to puhlish its daily net asset value 
(NAV) and to transact at that price. The mutual fimd held by the School is deemed 
to be actively traded. 

The methodologies described above inay produce a fair value calculation that may not be 
indicative of net realizable value or reflective of future fair values. Furthermore, while the 
School believes its valuation methods are appropriate and consistent with other market 
participants, the use of different methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair value 
of certain financial instruments could result in a different fair value measurement at the 
reporting date. 
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Note 6 - FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 

As ofJune 30, 2024, assets measured at fair value on a recurring hasis are comprised of and 
determined as ffillows: 

Based On 

Fair Value 
As of 

June 30, 2024 

$ 10,210,884 
126,142 

S 10,337,026 

Quoted Prices 
In Active 
Markets 

(Level 1) 

$ 10,210,884 
126,142 

Other 
Observable 

Inputs 
(Level 2) 

Unobservable 
Inputs 

(Level 3) Descr  

U. S Government and 
Government 

Agency bonds 
and notes 

Nlutua I fund 

S 10,337,026 S 

As of June 30. 2024, there were no assets ineasured at fair value on a non-recurring basis. 

Note 7 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 

Property and equipment as of June 30, 2024 and 2023 consists of the following: 

2024 2023 

Equipment 
Constrtiction in progress 

$ 327,477 $ 220,310 
656,968 7,25() 

Total property and equipment 

Less accumulated depreciation 

Property and equipment, net 

984,445 227,560 

(119,440) (85,)53) 

$ 865,005 $ 142,507  

Depreciation expense for the years ended June 30, 1014 and 2023 totaled $34,387 and 
$25,220, respectively. 
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Note 8 - COMPENSATED ABSENC'ES 

Teachers and staff are allowed a maximum of ten cumulative sick and personal days per 
year. For the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, earned and unused sick and personal 
days can be paid to employees at a rate of $125 and S80 per day, respectively, following 
the School's fiscal year end. Faculty and staff are allowed to carry over up to three unused 
sick and personal days to the following year. The School has accrued $87,734 and $59,288 
of unpaid leave as of June 30, 2()24 and 2023, respectively, which is included in accrued 
expenses on the Statements of Financial Position. 

Note 9 - NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS 

Net assets with donor restrictions as of June 30, 2024 and 2()23 are restricted for the 
following purposes: 

2024 2013 

Subject to expenditure 
for specified purpose: 

Instructional and other S 5.662 S30,662 
    

Net assets released from restrictions during the vears ended Iune 30. 2024 and 2023 are as 
follows: 

 

2024 2023 

Purpose restrictions satisfied: 

  

Before/after care 
and student fees $739,494 $ 648,827 

Instructional and other 52,114 578,095 

Total net assets released $791,608 $1,226,922 

Note 10 - RETIREMENT PLAN 

Certain employees of the School participate in the Teachers' Retirement System of 
Louisiana (TRSL). This system is a cost sharing. multiple-employer governmental defmed 
benefit plan qualified under Section 401(a) of the Internal Revenue Code ( IRC). The plan 
provides retirement benefits as well as disability and survivor benefits to eligihle 
participants. The TRSL issues publicly available financial reports that include financial 
statements and required supplementary information of the TRSL. That report may be 
obtained by writing to the Teachers' Retirement System of Louisiana, P.O. Box 94123, 
Baton Rouge, LA 70804-9123. 
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Note 10 - RETIREMENT PLAN (('ontinued) 

Participants vest iminediately in einployee contributions to the plan. Retireinent benefits 
vest after five years of service if the employee reaches age sixty: otherwise, benefits vest 
after ten years of service. Benefits are established and amended by state statute. Upon 
retirement, participants may select from eight retirement payment options. 

Participants are required to contribute to the plan );% of their annual covered payroll., the 
School was required to contribute 24.1% and 24.8% of the annual covered payroll of each 
participating employee for the years ended June 30. 2024 and 2023, respectively. These 
contribution levels are established hy state law and set by the Public Retirement Systems 
Actuarial Committee. For the years ended June 30, 2()24 and 2023, School contributions to 
this plan totaled $2,604,120 and $2,573,783, respectively. 

Note 11 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

During the years ended June 30. 2024 and 2023, the School had related party expenses 
totaling S1.317,568 aiid $960,966. respectively, with C)PSB. the School's Local 
Educational Agency. There was no receivable halance due from OPSB as ofJune 30, 2()24 
and 2023. There was $1,607,829 payable due to OPSB as ofJune 30, 2024. There were no 
amounts payahle due to OPSB as of June 30, 2023. 

During the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, the School paid S938,307 and $722,705, 
respectively, in administrative and other fees to OPSB. In addition, the School incurred 
$353,416 and $214,516 of related party expenses of OPSB for insurance costs on their 
current locations under the lease agreement for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2()23, 
respectively. 

The remaining related party expenses of S25,845 and $23,745 are for the food services 
provided by ()PSB for meals at the School tor the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, 
respectively. 

During the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, the School received $19,495 and $52,200 
from the PTO. affiliated as the parent organization of the studeiits enrolled at the School, 
which is included in donations on the Statement of Activities. The PTO receives the use of 
the School's facilities rent free during the year to host meetings or events. 

The School and Friends of Hynes have entered into a Cooperative Endeavor Agreement on 
September 28. 2020. to formalize their partnership for the purpose of constructing a new 
Hynes UNO Campus. The UNO Campus will be owned by Friends of Hynes and leased to 
the School. During the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, the School made contributions 
of S75.000 and S1.200,000. respectively, to Friends of Hynes for the construction. 
Subsequent to the year ended June 30, 2024. Friends of Hynes completed the construction 
of the new Hynes UNO Campus. 
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Note 12 - SCHOOL OPERATING AGREEMENTS 

Effective January 1, 2013, the School renewed an operating agreement with OPSB, which 
allows the School to use the Lakeview Cainpus and its contents located at 990 Harrison 
Ave.. New Orleans, Louisiana 70124, or any other locations as may be approved by the 
School and OPSB. The agreement was extended on July 1. 2021 and will expire on June 
30, 2()27. The agreeinent inay be renewed for a period of one year at the option of OPSB. 
For the use of the facilities, the School reimburses property insurance and other costs to 
OPSB through a usage fee. The School paid $208,884 and S128,627 for the years ended 
June 30. 2024 and 2023, respectively, in usage fees. 

Effective August 1, 2019, the School signed an operating agreement with OPSB, which 
allows the School to use the UNO Campus and its contents located at 6101 Chatham Dr., 
New Orleans. Louisiana 70122, or any other locations that may he approved by the School 
and OPSB. This agreement was extended on July 1. 2021 and expired on June 30. 2024, 
and was not renewed. For the use of the facilities, the School reimburses property insurance 
costs to OPSB through a usage fee. There were no usage fees assessed to the School for the 
years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023. 

Effective July 1, 2021, the School signed an operating agreeinent with OPSB, which allows 
the School to use the Parkview Campus and its contents located at 4617 Mirabeau Avenue., 
New Orleans. Louisiana 70126, or any other locations that may be approved by the School 
and OPSB. This agreement will expire on June 30, 2026. The agreement inay be renewed 
for a period of one year at the option of OPSB. For the use of the facilities, the School 
reimburses property insurance costs to OPSB through usage fees. The School paid 
$144,532 and S85.889 for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2()23, respectively. in usage 
fees. 

As of June 30, 2024 an (12023, the School has a $10,000 security deposit with ()PSB. 

The School is responsible for all necessary inaintenance to ensure that the facilities comply 
with all state and local health and safety standards and other applicable laws, regulations, 
and rules. Any and all capital projects to the premises shall become property of the Lessor, 
regardless of the source of funds for inaking same, unless the parties agree otherwise in 
writing. 
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Note 13 - AVAILABILITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS 

The School is suhstantially supported by grants and donations on an unrestricted and 
restricted basis. Because a grantor or donor's restriction requires resources to be used in a 
particular manner or ill a future period, the School must maintain sufficient resources to 
meet those responsibilities to its grantors and donors. Thus, financial assets may not be 
available for general expenditure within one year. As part of the School's liquidity 
management, management established a policy to structure its financial assets to be 
available as its general expenditures, liabilities. and other obligations become due. 
Management estahlished guidelines for making decisions related to managing short-term 
cash reserves and other investments in a prudent manner. 

The following reflects the School's financial assets as ofJune 30. 2024 and 2023, reduced 
by ainounts not available for general use because of grantor or donor-imposed restrictions. 

 

2024 1013 

Financial assets: 

  

Cash S 9,890,25(1 $ 10.937,682 
Grants receivable 796,891 2,607,977 
Investments 10,337,026 

 

Total financial assets 21,024,167 13.545,659 

Less amounts unavailable fbr general 
expenditures within one year, due to: 

  

Grantor and donor imposed restrictions: 

  

Restricted by grantors and donors 
with purpose restriction (5,662) (30,662) 

Financial assets available to meet cash needs 
fbr general expenditures within one year S 21,018,505 S 13.514,997 

Note 14 - COMMITMENTS 

The School has employment coiitracts as is standard in the field of education with most of 
its teachers and staff for the year ended June 30, 2024 which are paid through various end 
dates through August 3 I, 2()24. All contracts provide for a minimum annual salary and 
other benefits. Remaining amounts to be paid on these contracts are included in accrued 
expenses on the Statement of Financial Position. 
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Note 14 - COMMITMENTS (('ontinued) 

The School entered into a lease agreeinent with Friends of Hynes, a related party, to lease a 
school facility tbr fifty years conunencing upon substantial completion of the construction 
of the school facility. Subsequent to the year ended June 30. 2024. Friends of Hynes 
completed the construction of the new Hynes UNO Campus. The School arnended its lease 
payment with Friends of Hynes effective July 1, 2024. The lease amendment specifies a 
payment of $85,000 per inonth beginning in August 2024 plus the School's pro rata share 
ofproperty taxes, insurance, and CAN1 charges. Beginning July 1, 2()25 and continuing the 
sarne day each year. the rnonthly payrnent will increase to an amount agreed to by the 
School and Friends of Hynes. but no greater than a $40,000 per rnonth increase each year. 
If the School and Friends of Hynes fail to agree to the monthly lease increase, then the 
monthly lease payment shall continue in the same amount as the immediate preceding 
rnonthly lease payment. 

On June 29, 2023, the School entered into a contract in the amount of $691,545 tbr kitchen 
equipment for the new Hynes UNO Campus. The amount related to this contract in 
construction and progress as of June 30. 2024 is $656,968 (see Note 7). 

The School is guarantor on a construction loan agreement tbr Friencls of Hynes providing 
for principal draws up to $25,652,000. 

Note 15 - CONTINGENCIES 

The continuation of the School is contingent upon legislative appropriation or allocation of 
funds necessary to fulfill the requirements of the charter contract with OPSB. If the 
legislature fails to appropriate sufficient inonies to provide tbr the continuation of the 
charter contract, or if such appropriation is reduced by veto of the governor or by any 
rneans provided in the appropriations act to prevent the appropriation for the year from 
exceeding revenues for that year, or for any other lawful purpose. and the effect of such 
reduction is to provide insufficient monies for the continuation of the charter contract, the 
contract shall terininate on the date of the beginning of the first fiscal year for which funds 
are not appropriated. 

Note 16 - RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES 

In general. investment securities are exposed to various risks, such as interest rate, 
currency, credit, and market volatility. Due to the level of risk associated with certain 
investments, it is at lease reasonably possible that changes in risk in the near term would 
materially affect the fair market value of investments held hy the School. 
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Note 17 - RISK MANAGEMENT 

The School is exposed to various risks of loss from torts, theft and damage to assets, 
business interruption, errors and omissions, employee injuries and illnesses, natural 
disasters, and employee health and accident benefits. Conunercial insurance coverage is 
purchased for claims arising from such matters. There were no settled claims or unsettled 
claims that exceeded this commercial coverage during the years ended June 30, 2024 and 
2023. 
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Schedule 1 

SCHEDULE OF COMPENSATION, BENEFITS, AND OTHER  
PAYMENTS TO AGENCY HEAD OR CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 

Hynes Charter School Corporation 
New Orleans, Louisiana 

For the year ended June 30, 2014 

Agency Head Name: Michelle Douglas, Chief Executive Officer 

Purpose 

 

Salary S214,815 
Benefits - insurance 7,809 
Benefits - retirement 51,501 
Deferred compensation 0 
Workers compensation 1,023 
Benefits - life insurance 0 
Benefits - long term disability 0 
Benefits - FICA and Medicare 3,068 
Benefits - unemployment 1()3 
Car allowance 0 
Vehicle provided by government 

 

Cell phone 1 ,626 
Dues ,03 0 
Vehicle rental 0 
Per diem 
Tuition reimbursements 

 

Travel 6.204 
Registration fees 0 
Conference travel 0 
Unvouchered expenses 0 
Meetings and conventions 
Other 

  

S291,179 
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Schedule 2 

SCHEDULE OF ACTIVITIES - LAKEVIEW CAMPUS 

Hynes Charter School Corporation 
New Orleans, Louisiana 

For the year ended June 30, 2024 
(with comparative totals for 2023) 

Revenues and Other Support 
Grants: 

2024 1013 

  

Federal S £9(),27U $1,843,38() 
State 63() 

 

Other 9,72() 43,269 
State and local Minimum Foundation Program 9,091,604 8,293,438 
Donations 18,353 49,808 
Student fees 408,797 358,004 
Employee Retention Tax Credit 

  

Miscellaneous revenue 121,832 92,530 
Investment income 

rotal revenues and other support 

  

10.541,206 10,680.429 

Expenses 

  

Administrative fee 160,455 160,345 
Advertising 4,670 1,675 
Depreciation 14,654 19,391 
Disposal services 12,569 10,624 
Dues and tees 25,920 22,367 
Employee benefits and payroll taxes 1,616,412 1,431,143 
Equipment rental 26,022 22,752 
Food service management 10,800 10,650 
Information technoloey services 154A26 177,882 
Insurance 254,438 168,952 
Materials and supplies 276,482 321,()61 
Miscellaneous expense 13,208 3,835 
Professional development 38,284 108,254 
Professional services 332,996 308,746 
Repairs and maintenance 229,995 224,564 
Salaries and wages 4,681,619 4,460,233 
Textbooks 77,741 64,701 
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Schedule 2 
(Continued) 

Expenses (('ontinued) 

2024 1013 

  

Transportation 42,291 40,044 
Travel 68,614 60,920 
Utilities 228,760 267,930 

Total expenses 8,270,356 7,886,069 

Expenses allocated from other campuses 595,000 586,000 

Increase in net assets after allocations $1,675,850 S2,208,360 
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Schedule 3 

SCHEDULE OF ACTIVITIES - UNO CAMPUS 

Hynes Charter School Corporation 
New Orleans, Louisiana 

For the year ended June 30, 2024 
(with comparative totals for 2(123) 

Revenues and Other Support 
Grants: 

2024 1013 

  

Federal $2,360,37() $1,168,827 
State 500 

 

Other 4,610 415,836 
State and local Minimum Foundation Program 6,656,975 4,808,402 
Donations 41,086 14,940 
Student fees 237,089 194,098 
Employee Retention Tax Credit 

  

Miscellaneous revenue 94,395 53,057 
Investment income 

Total revenues and other support 

  

9,395.0/5 6.655, I 60 

Expenses 

  

Administrative fee 118,591 92,634 
Advertising 82() 1,230 
Depreciation 12,402 3,654 
Disposal services 11,616 8,073 
Dues and fees 11,334 6,889 
Employee benefits and payroll taxes 1,076,261 895,543 
Equipment rental 15,829 14,766 
Food service manatzement 7,485 5,910 
Information technology services 102,009 80,101 
Insurance 34,153 23,774 
Materials and supplies 1,395,686 505,931 
Miscellaneous expense 787 10,469 
Professional development 62,974 56,542 
Professional services 285,545 212,75() 
Repairs and maintenance 40,578 70,962 
Salaries and wages 3,007,335 2,539,598 
Textbooks 70,464 20,763 
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Schedule 3 
(Continued) 

Expenses (Continued) 

2024 1013 

  

Transportation 96,667 140,008 
Travel 4,077 14,832 
Utilities 107,701 112,138 

Total expenses 6.462,314 4,816.567 

Expenses allocated from other campuses 405,000 346,000 

Increase in net assets S2,527,711 $1,492,593 
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Schedule 4 

SCHEDULE OF ACTIVITIES - PARKVIEW CAMPUS 

Hynes Charter School Corporation 
New Orleans, Louisiana 

For the year ended June 30, 1014 
(with comparative totals for 2013) 

Revenues and Other Support 
Grants: 

Federal 
State 

2024 2023 

S1,135,700 S2,104,591 

Other 4,61() 161,353 
State and local Minimum Foundation Program 6,382,527 5,925,656 
Donations 12,925 28,772 
Student fees 93,608 96,725 
Eniployee Retention Tax Credit 

  

Miscellaneous revenue 66,325 56,326 
Investment income 

Total revenues and other support 

  

7,695.695 8,373.423 

Expenses 

  

Administrative fee 114,193 108,957 
Advertising 820 780 
Depreciation 7,331 2,175 
Disposal services 9,135 7,499 
Dues and fees 8,362 3,581 
Employee benefits and payroll taxes 1,035,172 1,221,6()7 
Equipment rental 13,982 12,081 
Food service manatzement 7,560 7,185 
Information technology services 121,546 139,259 
Insurance 178,6£5 113,358 
Materials and supplies 241,66() 349,556 
Miscellaneous expense 1,072 390 
Professional development 47,772 61,349 
Professional services 443,884 200,498 
Repairs and maintenance 459,368 420,680 
Salaries and wages 3,104,252 3,038,510 
Textbooks 48,428 57,036 
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Schedule 4 
(Continued) 

Expenses (Continued) 

2024 2023 

  

Transportation 526,300 578,911 
Travel 12,8" 14,853 
Utilities 140,944 176,775 

Total expenses 6,523,288 6,515,040 

Expenses allocated from other campuses 429,000 400,000 

Increase in net assets S 743,407 S1,458,383 
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Schedule 5 

SCHEDULE OF ACTIVITIES - NETWORK OFFICE 

Hynes Charter School Corporation 
New Orleans, Louisiana 

For the year ended June 30, 1014 
(with comparative totals for 2013) 

Revenues and Other Support 
Grants: 

2024 2023 

  

Federal S 317,648 $ 372,301 
State 

  

Other 

 

35,000 
State and local Minimum Foundation Program 

  

Donations 17,184 7,500 

Student fees 

  

Eniployee Retention Tax Credit 1,174,453 1,816,059 
Miscellaneous revenue 14,462 

 

Investment income 344,087 

 

Total revenues and other support 1,867.834 2,230.860 

Expenses 

  

Administrative fee 

 

3,076 
Advertising 7,085 2,410 
Depreciation 

  

Disposal services 

  

Dues and fees 54,190 38,515 
Employee benefits and payroll taxes 355,730 367,815 
Equipment rental 

  

Food service manaizement 

  

Information technology services 14,497 8,393 
Insurance 

  

Materials and supplies 4,224 23,397 
Miscellaneous expense 2£9 

 

Professional development 6,081 25,222 
Professional services 66,144 39,394 
Repairs and maintenance 

  

Salaries and wages 1,092,171 1,119,974 
Textbooks 

  



Schedule 5 
(Continued) 

Expenses (Continued) 
Transportation 

2024 2023 

  

Travel 64,151 50.814 

Total expenses 1.664,562 1.688,020 

Expenses allocated to other campuses (1,429,00(1) (1,332.000) 

Increase in net assets S1,632,272 S1,874.840 



SPECIAL REPORTS OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 



Bourgeois Bennett 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS l CONSULTANTS 

A LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL 
CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND  

ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON  
AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN  

ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Board of Directors, 
Hynes Charter School Corporation, 

Louisiana, Louisiana. 

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Cornptroller General of the United States of America, the financial 
staternents of Hynes Charter School Corporation (a non-profit organization) (the "School") which 
comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2024, and the related statements of 
activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, which collectively comprise the School's financial statements, and have issued 
our report thereon dated October 21, 2024. 

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the School's 
internal control over financial reporting ("internal control") as a basis for designing audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circurnstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial 
staternents, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the School's 
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the School's 
internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
rnanagernent or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or 
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a 
material rnisstatement of the School's financial statements will not be prevented or detected and 
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, 
in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention 
by those charged with governance. 
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that 
might be a material weakness or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we 
did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. 
However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not been identified. 

Report on Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the School's financial statements are 
free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and 
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion 
on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not 
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other 
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
School's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the School's internal control and 
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

e 
Certified Public Accountants. 

New Orleans, Louisiana, 
October 21, 2024. 
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Bourgeois Bennett 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS l CONSULTANTS 

A LIMITED LIARILITY COMPANY 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON  
COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM  

AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE 
REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE  

To the Board of Directors, 
Hynes Charter School Corporation, 

New Orleans, Louisiana. 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited the compliance of Hynes Charter School Corporation (the "School") with the 
types of compliance requirements identified as subject to audit in the OMB Compliance Supplement 
that could have a direct and material effect on each of the School's major federal programs for the 
year ended June 30, 2024. The School's major federal programs are identified in the summary of 
auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

In our opinion, the School complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal 
programs for the year ended June 30, 2024. 

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the 
audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our 
responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform Guidance are further described in the Auditor's 
Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our report. 
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We are required to be independent of the School and to ineet our other ethical responsibilities, 
in accordance with relevant ethical requiretnents relating to our audit. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on 
compliance for each major federal prograin. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of tlie 
School's compliance with the coinpliance requirements referred to above. 

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the 
requirernents of laws. statutes, regulations, rules. and provisions of contracts or grant agreements 
applicable to the School's federal programs. 

Auditor's Responsihilities for the Audit of Compliance 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether inaterial noncompliance with 
the compliance requirements referred to above occurred. whether due to fraud or error, and express an 
opinion on the School's compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance hut is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards. and the 
Uniform Guidance will always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting 
material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional otnissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 
control. Noncornpliance with the coinpliance requirernents referred to above is considered rnaterial if 
there is a substaiitial likelihood that. individually or in the aggregate. it would influence the judgment 
made hy a reasonahle user of the report on compliance about the School's compliance with the 
requirements of each major federal program as a whole. 

In perfonning an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Government 
Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, we: 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the 
audit. 

• Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, 
and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures 
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the School's coinpliance with the 
compliance requirements referred to above and pertbrming such other procedures as we 
considered necessary in the circumstances. 

• Obtain aii understanding of the School's iiiteriial control over compliance relevant to 
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circutnstances 
and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the 
Uniform Guidance, hut not tbr the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the School's internal control over coinpliance. Accordingly. no such 
opinion is expressed. 
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We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material 
weaknesses in internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit. 

Report on Internal Control over Compliance 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a 
control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of 
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal 
control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a 
timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over 
compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in 
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to 
identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit 
we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be 
material weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in 
internal control over compliance may exist that were not identified. 

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of 
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the 
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Certified Public Accountants. 

New Orleans, Louisiana. 
October 21, 2024. 
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SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

Hynes Charter School Corporation 
New Orleans, Louisiana 

For the year ended June 30, 2014 

Federal Grantor/Program Title 

Assistance 
Listing 
Number 

Federal 
Expenditures 

Subrecipient 
Costs 

United States Department of Education 
Pass-through Programs From: 

Louisiana Department of Education: 
Special Education Cluster (IDEA) 

Special Education - Grants to States 

   

(IDEA, Part By 84.027 $ 452,017 S 
Special Education Preschool 

Grants 84.173 7,889 

 

Total Special Education 
Cluster (IDEA) 

 

459,906 

 

Title 1 Grants to Local 
Educational Agencies 84.010 664,351 

 

Charter Schools 84.282 1,803,189 

 

Supporting Effective Instruction 
State Grants 84.367 101,240 

 

Student Support and Academic 
Enrichment Program 84.424 60,675 

 

Education Stabilization Fund 

   

Under the Coronavinis Aid, 

   

Relief, and Economic 

   

Security Act 84.425D 1,614.573 

 

Total expenditures of 
federal awards 

 

S 4.703.934 S 

See accompanying notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. 
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NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

Hynes Charter School Corporation 
New Orleans, Louisiana 

For the year ended June 30. 2()24 

Note 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

a. General 

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards presents the activity of 
all federal awards of Hynes Charter School Corporation (the "School"). The School's 
reporting entity is defined in Note 1 to the financial statements for the year ended June 
30, 2()24. All federal awards received directly from federal agencies are included on the 
schedule, as well as federal awards passed-through other govermnent agencies. 

b. Basis of Accounting 

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented using the 
accrual basis of accounting, which is described in Note 1 to the School's fiiiancial 
statements for the year ended June 30, 2024. 

c. Indirect Cost Rate 

The School has elected to use the 10% de minimus indirect cost rate as allowed under 
Unitbrm Guidance. 



SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

Hynes Charter School Corporation 
New Orleans, Louisiana 

For the year ended June 30. 2024 

Section I - Summary of Auditor's Results 

a) Financial Staternents 

Type of report issued on the financial statements: Unmodified 

Lnternal control over tinancial reporting: 

• Material weakness(es) identified? 

• Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are 
not considered to he a material weakness? 

Yes X No 

Yes X None reported      

Noncompliance material to financial statenients noted? Yes  X  No 

bt Federal Awards 

Internal controls over major programs: 

• Material weakness(es) identified? 

• Significant deficiency(les) identified that are 
not considered to be a material weakness? 

 Yes X No 

 Yes X No 

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major progams: unmodified 

• Any audit findings disclosed that are required 
to be reported in accordance with the 
Uniform Guidance? Yes X No 
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(Continued) 

Section I - Sunman-  of Auditor's Results (C'ontinued) 

c) Identification of Major Programs: 

('FI)A Number Name of Federal Progam 

84 282 United States Departrnent of Education 
Charter Schools 

I)ollar threshold used to distinguish 
between Type A and Type B progams: $750 000 

Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee? X Yes No 

Section II - Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and Compliance and Other Matters 
Material to the Basic Financial Statements 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

No internal control over financial reporting Imdings were reported during the audit for the year 
ended June 30, 2024. 

Cornpliance and Other Matters 

No compliance findings material to the financial statements were reported during the audit for 
the year ended June 30, 2()24. 

Section III - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs 

Internal Control/Compliance 

There were no lindin€s or questioned costs reported during the audit of the financial staternents 
for the year ended June 30, 2024 related to internal control and compliance material to federal 
awards. 
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REPORTS BY MANAGEMENT 



SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

Hynes Charter School Corporation 
New Orleans, Louisiana 

For the veal ended June 30, 2014 

Section I - Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and Compliance and Other Matters 
Material to the Basic Financial Statements 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

There were no findines noted during the audit for the year ended June 30. 2023 related to 
internal control over financial reporting material to the basic financial statements. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

There were no findings material to the financial statements noted during the audit for the year 
ended June 30, 2023 related to compliance and other matters. 

Section II - Internal Control and Compliance Material to Federal Awards 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

No internal control over financial reporting findings were reported during the audit for the year 
ended June 30, 2023. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

No compliance findings material to the financial stitements were reported during the auclit tbr 
the year ended June 30, 2023. 

Section III - Management Letter 

A management letter was not issuec n connection with the auc of the financial statements for the 
year ended June 30. 2023. 
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MANAGEMENT'S CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN 

Hynes Charter School Corporation 
New Orleans, Louisiana 

For the year ended June 30. 2024 

Section I - Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and Compliance and Other Matters 
Material to the Basic Financial Statements 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

There were no findings noted during the audit for the year ended June 30. 2024 related to 
internal control over financial reporting material to the basic financial statements. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

There were no findings material to thc financial statements noted during the audit for the vear 
ended June 30. 2024 related to compliance and other matters. 

Section II - Internal Control and Compliance Material to Federal Awards 

There were no findings or questioned costs reported during the audit of the financial statements for 
the year ended June 30, 2024. related to internal control and compliance material to federal 
awards. 

Section III - Management Letter 

A management letter was not issued in connection with the audit of the financial statements for the 
year ended June 30, 2024. 
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SCHEDULES REQUIRED BY STATE LAW 
(R.S. 24:514 - PERFORMANCE AND STATISTICAL DATA) 

(UNAUDITED)  



Bourgeois Bennett 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS l CONSULTANTS 

A LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY 

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT'S REPORT  
ON APPLYING AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 

To the Board of Trustees, 
Hynes Charter School Corporation, 

New Orleans, Louisiana. 

We have performed the procedures enumerated below on the performance and statistical 
data accompanying the annual financial statements of Hynes Charter School Corporation (the 
"School"), for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024, and to determine whether the specified 
schedules are free of obvious errors and omissions, in compliance with Louisiana Revised Statute 
24:514(I). Management of the School is responsible for its performance and statistical data. 

The School has agreed to and acknowledged that the procedures performed are appropriate 
to meet the intended purpose of the engagement, which is to perform specified procedures on the 
performance and statistical data accompanying the annual financial statements. Additionally, the 
Louisiana Department of Education and the Louisiana Legislative Auditor have agreed to and 
acknowledged that the procedures performed are appropriate for their purposes. This report may 
not be suitable for any other purpose. The procedures performed may not address all the items of 
interest to a user of this report and may not meet the needs of all users of this report and, as such, 
users are responsible for determining whether the procedures performed are appropriate for their 
purposes. 

Our procedures and associated findings are as follows: 

General Fund Instructional and Support Expenditures and Certain Local Revenue 
Sources (Schedule 6)  

1. We selected a random sample of 25 transactions, reviewed supporting documentation, 
and observed that the sampled expenditures/revenues are classified correctly and are 
reported in the proper amounts among the following amounts reported on Schedule 6. 

• Total General Fund Instructional Expenditures 

• Total General Fund Equipment Expenditures 

Results: No exceptions were noted. 
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Class Size Characteristics (Schedules 7a through 7c) 

2. We obtained a list of classes by school, school type, and class size as reported on the 
schedules. We traced a sample of ten classes to the October 1. 2023 roll books for those 
classes and obsenied that the class was properly classified on the schedules. 

Results: No exceptions were noted. 

Education Levels/Experience of Puhlic School Staff 

We obtained the October 1, 2023 PEP data submitted to the Department of Education 
(or equivalent listing prepared by management), including full-time teachers, principals, 
and assistant principals by classification, as well as their level of education and 
experience, and obtained management's representation that the data was complete. We 
then selected a sample of 25 individuals, traced to each individual's personnel file, and 
observed that each indiyidual's education level and experience was properly classified 
on the PEP data or equivalent listing prepared by management. 

Results: Exception noted: One sampled individual's years of experience was 
incorrectly reported on the October 1, 2023 PEP data submitted to the Department of 
Education. 

Public School Staff Data: AN erne Salaries 

4. We obtained the June 30, 2024 PEP data submitted to the Department of Education (or 
equivalent listing provided by management), of all classroom teachers, including base 
salary, extra compensation, and RC)TC or rehired retiree status, as well as full-time 
equivalents, and obtained management's representation that the listing was complete. 
We selected a sample of 25 individuals. traced to each individual's personnel file, and 
observed that each individual's salary, extra compensation, and full-time equivalents 
were properly included on the PEP data (or equivalent listing prepared by 
inanageinent). 

Results: Exceptions noted: One sampled individual's total salaries were incorrectly 
reported on the June 30, 2024 PEP data submitted to the Department of Education. 

We were engaged by the School to perform this agreed-upon procedures engagement and 
conducted our engagement in accordance with attestation standards established by the American 
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and the standards applicable to attestation engagements 
contained in Government Auditing Sondards, issued by the United States Comptroller General. 
We were not engaged to and did not conduct an examination or review engagement, the objective 
of which would be the expression of an opinion or conclusion. respectively. on the perforinance 
and statistical data. Accordingly. we do not express such an opinion or conclusion. Had we 
performed additional procedures, other matters might have come to our attention that would have 
been reported to you. 
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We are required to be independent of the School and to meet our other ethical 
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements related to our agreed-upon 
procedures engagement. 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of testing performed on the 
performance and statistical data accompanying the annual financial statements of the Hynes 
Charter School Corporation as required by Louisiana Revised Statute 24:514(I), and the result of 
that testing, and not to provide an opinion on control or compliance. Accordingly, this report is not 
suitable for any other purpose. Under Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, this report is distributed 
by the Louisiana Legislative Auditor as a public document. 

,6„.r ), ,6,,,,,,,* ¿i.e. 

Certified Public Accountants. 

New Orleans, Louisiana, 
October 21, 2024. 
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Schedule 6 

GENERAL FUND INSTRUCTIONAL AND SUPPORT  
EXPENDITURES AND CERTAIN LOCAL REVENUE SOURCES 

Hynes Charter School Corporation 
New Orleans, Louisiana 

For the year ended June 30. 2024 
(Unaudited) 

General Fund Instructional and Equipment Expenditures 
Instructional expenditures: 

Teacher and student interaction activities: 
Classroom teacher salaries 
Other instnictional staff salaries 
Instnictional staff employee benefits 
Purchased professional and technical services 
Instnictional materials and supplies 
Instructional equipment 

S 6,219,251 
1,282,643 
2,706,940 

227,551 
709,535 

  

Total teacher and student interaction activities 

 

$ 11,145,921 

Other instructional activities 

 

1,035,665 

Pupil support services 504.179 

 

Less: equipment for pupil support services 

Net pupil support services 

 

504,179 

 

Instructional staff services 452,250 

 

Less: equipnient for instnictional staff services 

Net instructional staff services 

 

452,25() 

 

School administration 1 497,674 

 

Less: equipment for school administration 

  

Net school administration 

 

1,497.674 

Total general fiind instructional expenditures 

 

S 14.635,689 

* Remainder of the BESE Schedule 6 does not apply to the School. 

See independent accountant's report on applying Agreed-Upon Procedures. 
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Schedule 7a 

CLASS SIZE CHARACTERISTICS 

Hynes C:harter School C:orporation 
Lakeview ('ampus 

New Orleans, Louisiana 

As of October 1,2073 
(Unaudited) 

Class Size Range 
1-20 "7 1-76 27-33 34+ 

Schml Type Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number 

Elementary 34% 94 78% 78 37'1 0 102 1% 

Elementary 
Activity Classes 20% 6 73% 7 47°0 14 10% 3 

Middlelr. High 

Middle:Jr High 
Activity Classes 

High 

High Activity 
Classes 

Combination 

Combination 
Activity Classes 

• 

• 

Note: 
The Board of Elementary and Secondary Education has set specific limits on the maximum size of classes at 
various grade levels The maximum enrollment in grades K-3 is 26 students, and maximum enrollment in 
p -ades 4-12 is 33 students. These limits do not apply to activity classes such as physical education, chorus, 
band, and other classes without maximum enrollment standards Therefore, these classes are included only as 
separate line items. 

See independent aceountant•s report on .applyin2 Agreed-Upon Procedures. 
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Schedule 7b 

CLASS SIZE ('HARACTERISTICS 

Hynes Charter School Corporation 
UNO Campus 

New Orleans, Louisiana 

As of October 1,2013 
(Unaudited) 

Class Size Rarig,e 
1-20 1-)6  27-33 34 f 

School Type Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number 

Elemernary 35% 

Elementary 
Activity Classes 0% 

Middlelr. High 

Middle:Jr High 
Activity Classes 

High 

High Activity 
Classes 

Combination 

Combination 
Activity Classes 

61 15% 20 49°'o 85 1% 1 

3 81% 13 0% 

Note: 
The Board of Elementary and Secondary Education has set specific limits on the maximum size of classes at 
various grade levels. The maximum enrollment in gyades K-3 is 26 students. and maximum enrollment in 
Lu-ades 4-12 is 33 students. These limits do not apply to activity classes such as physical education, chorus, 
band, and other classes without maximum enrollment standards Therefore, these classes are included only as 
separate line items. 

See independent accountant•s report on applying Agreed-Upon Procedures. 
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Schedule 7c 

CLASS SIZE ('HARACTERISTICS 

Hynes Charter School Corporation 
Parkview Campus 

New Orleans, Louisiana 

As of October 1, 20'13 
(Unaudited) 

Class Size Range 
1-20 11-/6 27-33 34 f 

School Type Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number 

Elemernary /6% 46 11% 37 577 0,6 91 1% 1 

Elementary 
Activity Classes 44% 12 19% 5 37°r(.. 10 0% 

Middle:Jr. High 

Middle:Jr High 
Activity Classes 

High 

High Activity 
Classes 

Combination 

Combination 
Activity Classes 

• 

Note: 
The Board of Elementary and Secondary Education has set specific limits on the maximum size of classes at 
various grade levels. The maximum enrollment in grades K-3 is 26 students, and maximum enrollment in 
gxades 4-12 is 33 students These limits do not apply to activity classes such as physical education. chorus, 
hand, and other classes without maximum enrollment standards. Therefore, these classes are included only as 
separate line items. 

See independent accountant's report on applvina A oreed-Upon Procedures. 
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Hynes Charter School Corporation 
Michelle B. Douglas, Ed.D. 
Chief Executive Officer 
990 Harrison Avenue 
New Orleans, Louisiana 70124 

October 21, 2024 

Louisiana Legislative Auditor 
1600 North 3rd  Street 
P. O. Box 94397 
Baton Rouge, Louisiana 
70804-9397 

through 

Mr. Paul Pechon, CPA 
Bourgeois Bennett, LLC 
P. O. Box 60600 
New Orleans, Louisiana 
70160-0600 

Re: Managements Response to the Board of Elementary and Secondary Agreed-Upon 
Procedures for Hynes Charter School Corporation 

Dear Mr. Pechon: 

Testing of the Profile of Educational Personnel (PEP) data for fiscal year ending June 30, 
2024, yielded exceptions as follows: One sampled individual had incorrect years of 
experience and one sampled individual had incorrect total salary in the PEP data reported 
to the Department of Education. Hynes personnel analyzed the reasons for the 
discrepancies and alternate procedures are being implemented to prevent future 
reporting errors. 

With warm regards, 

Michelle B. Douglas, Ed.D. 
Chief Executive Officer 
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STATEWIDE AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 



Bourgeois Bennett 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS I CONSULTANTS 

A LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY 

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT'S REPORT ON 
APPLYING AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 

To the Board of Directors, 
Hynes Charter School Corporation, 

New Orleans, Louisiana. 

We have perforrned the procedures described in Schedule 8 on the control and compliance 
(C/C) areas identified in the Louisiana Legislative Auditor's (LLA) Statewide Agreed-Upon 
Procedures (SAUP) for the fiscal period July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2024. Hynes Charter School 
Corporation (the "School") management is responsible for those C/C areas identified in the SAUPs. 

The School has agreed to and acknowledged that the procedures performed are appropriate 
to meet the intended purpose of the engagement, which is to perforrn specified procedures on the 
C/C areas identified in the LLA's SAUPs for the fiscal period July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2024. 
Additionally, LLA has agreed to and acknowledged that the procedures performed are appropriate 
for its purpose. This report may not be suitable for any other purpose. The procedures performed 
may not address all the items of interest to a user of this report and may not meet the needs of all 
users of this report and, as such, users responsible for deterrnining whether the procedures 
performed are appropriate for their purposes. 

The procedures and associated findings are described in Schedule 8. 

We were engaged by the School to perform this agreed-upon procedures engagernent and 
conducted our engagernent in accordance with the attestation standards established by the American 
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and applicable standards of Government Auditing 
Standards. We were not engaged to and did not conduct an examination or review engagement, the 
objective of which would be the expression of an opinion or conclusion, respectively, on these C/C 
areas identified in the SAUPs. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion or conclusion. Had 
we performed additional procedures, other matters might have come to our attention that would 
have been reported to you. 

We are required to be independent of the School and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, 
in accordance with the relevant ethical requirernents related to our agreed-upon procedures 
engagement. 
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This report is intended solely to describe the scope of testing performed on those C/C areas 
identified in the SAUPs, and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on control or 
compliance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. Under Louisiana Revised 
Statute 24:513, this report is distributed by the LLA as a public document. 

/6,14,tr , Zz 

Certified Public Accountants 
New Orleans, Louisiana, 
October 21, 2024. 
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Schedule 8 

SCHEDULE OF PROCEDURES AND ASSOCIATED FINDINGS 
OF THE STATEWIDE AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES  

Hynes Charter School Corporation 
New Orleans, Louisiana 

For the year ended June 30, 1024 

1) Procedures Performed on the School's Written Policies and Procedures: 

A. Obtain and inspect the School's written policies and procedures and observe whether they 
address each of the following categories and subcategories if applicable to public funds and 
the School's operations: 

i. Budgeting, inchiding preparing, adopting, monitoring, and amending the budget. 
Performance: Obtained and read the written policy for budgeting and found it to 

address all the functions listed above. 
Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

ii. Purchasing, including (1) how purchases are initiated; (2) how vendors are added to the 
vendor list: (3) the preparation and approval process of purchase requisitions and 
purchase orders; (4) controls to ensure compliance with the Public Bid Law; and (5) 
documentation required to be maintained tbr all bids and price quotes. 

Performance: Obtained and read the written policy for purchasing and found it to 
address all the functions listed above. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

iii. Disbursements, including processing, reviewing. and approving. 
Performance: Obtained and read the written policy for disbursements and found it to 

address all the functions listed above. 
Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

iv. Receipts/Collections. including receiving. recording, and preparing deposits. Also, 
policies and procedures should include management's actions to determine the 
completeness of each type of revenue or School fund additions (e.g., periodic 
confirmafion with outside parties, reconciliafion to utility billing after cutoff procedures, 
reconciliation of traffic ticket number sequences, a€ency fund forfeiture monies 
confirmation). 

Perffirmance: Obtained and read the written policy tbr receipts and found it to address 
all the functions listed above. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptioiis noted. 
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Schedule 8 
(Continued) 

1) Procedures Performed on the School's Written Policies and Procedures: (Continued) 

v. Payroll/Personnel, including ( 1) payroll processing, (2) reviewing and approving tiine 
and attendance records, including leave and overtime worked, and (3) approval process 
for employee rates of pay or approval and maintenance of pay rate schedules. 

Performance: Obtained and read the written policy for payroll and personnel and 
tbund it to address all the functions listed above. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

vi. Contracting, including (1) types of services requiring written contracts. (2) standard 
terms and conditions. (3) legal review. (4) approval process, and (5) monitoring process. 

Performance: Obtained and read the written policy for contracting and found it to 
address all the functions listed above. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

Travel and Expense Rehnbursement, including (1) allowable expenses, (2) dollar 
thresholds by category of expense, (3) documentation requirements, and (4) required 
approvers. 

Performance: Obtained and read the written policy for travel and expense 
reimbursement and found it to address all the fitnctions listed above. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

viii. Credit Cards (and dehit cards, fuel cards, purchase cards. if applicable}, including (1 ) 
how cards are to be controlled, (2) allowable business uses, (3) documentation 
requirements, (4 ) required approvers of statements, and (5) monitoring card usage (e.g., 
determining the reasonableness of fuel card purchases). 

Performance: Obtained and read the written policy for credit cards and found it to 
address all the functions listed above. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

ix. Ethics, including (1 ) the prohibitions as defined in Louisiana Revised Statute (R.S.) 
42:1111-1121, (2) actions to be taken if an ethic.s violation takes place, (3 ) system to 
monitor possible ethics violations, and (4) a requirement that documentation is 
maintained to demonstrate that all employees and officials were notified of any changes 
to the School's ethics policy. 

Performance: Obtained and read the written policy for ethics and found it to address 
all the functions listed above. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

x. Debt Service. including (1) debt issuance approval. (2) continuing disclosure/EMMA 
reporting requiretnents, (3) debt reserve requirements, and (4) debt service requirements. 

Not apphcable for not-for-profits. 
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Schedule 8 
(Continued) 

1) Procedures Performed on the School's Written Policies and Procedures: (Continued) 

xi. Information Technology Disaster Recovery/Business Continuity, including (1) 
identitication of critical data and frequency of data backups; (2) storage of backups in a 
separate physical location isolated froin the network., (3) periodic testingiverification that 
backups can be restored; (4) use of antivirus software on all systems; (5) timely 
application of all availahle systein and software patches/updates; and (6) identification of 
personnel, processes, and tools needed to recover operations after a critical event. 

Pertbrmance: Obtained and read the written policy for intbrmation technology 
disaster recovery/business continuity and found it to address all the functions listed 
above. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

xii. Prevention of Sexual Harassment. including R.S. 42:342-344 requirements for (11 
agency responsibilities and prohibitions, (2) annual employee training. and (3) annual 
reporting. 

Not apphcable for not-tbr-profits. 

2) Procedures Perfornied on the School's Board or Finance Committee: 

A. Obtain and inspect the boardifinance committee minutes for the fiscal period, as well as the 
board's enabling legislation. charter. hylaws. or equivalent document in effect during the 
fiscal period and: 

i. Observe that the board met with a quorum at least monthly, or on a frequency in 
accordance with the boardlfinance conunittee's enabling legislation, charter. bylaws. or 
other equivalent document. 

Performance: Obtained and read the written minutes of the Board meetings. The 
Board inet with a quorum for all meetings held during the fiscal year. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

ii. For those entities reporting on the not-for-profit accounting model, observe that the 
minutes referenced or included financial activity relating to public funds if those funds 
comprised more than 10% of the entity's collections during the fiscal year. 

Performance: Inspected rneeting minutes to determine if the minutes included 
references to financial activity relating to public funds. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

iii. For governmental entities. obtain the prior year audit report and observe the unassi€ned 
fund halance in the geiieral fund. If the general fund had a negative ending unassigned 
fund balance in the prior year audit report, observe that the minutes for at least one 
meeting during the fiscal period referenced or included a formal plan to eliminate the 
negative unrestricted fund balance in the geiieral fund. 

Not applicable for not-for-profits. 
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2) Procedures Performed on the School's Board or Finance Committee: (('ontinued) 

iv. Observe whether the boardifinance committee received written updates of the progress 
of resolving audit findings), according to management's corrective action plan at each 
meeting until the findings are considered fully resolved. 

There were no audit findings in the prior year. therefore, this step is not applicable. 

3) Procedures Performed on the School's Bank Reconciliations: 

A. Obtain a listing of the School's bank accounts froin management and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Ask management to identify the School's main 
operating account. Select the School's inain operating account and randomly select 4 
additional accounts (or all accounts if less than 5). Randomly select one month from the 
fiscal period. obtain. and inspect the corresponding bank statement and reconciliation for 
each selected account, and observe that: 

Performance: Obtained the listing of bank accounts from management and received 
management's representation in a separate letter. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

i. Bank reconciliations include evidence that they were prepared within 2 months of the 
related statement closing date (e.g., initialed and dated or electronically logged): and 

Performance: Ohtained monthly bank reconciliations for the inonth of May 2024, for 
the main operating bank account and 4 additional accounts. Inspected 
management's docuinentation for timely preparation of the bank reconciliations. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

ii. Bank reconciliations include written evidence that a member of management or a hoard 
member who does not handle cash, post ledgers, or issue checks has reviewed each bank 
reconciliation within one inonth of the date the reconciliation was prepared (e.g., initialed 
and dated or electronically logged): and 

Performance: Examined the School's documentation noting evidence of a member of 
management's review of the May 2024 bai± reconciliations for the 5 bank 
accounts selected within one month of the date of the reconciliation. 

Exceptions: There were lio exceptions noted. 

iii. Management has documentation reflecting that it has researched reconciling items that 
have been outstanding for more than 12 months from the statement closing date, if 
applicable. 

Performance: Inspected documents for items outstanding for more than 12 months. 
We noted one check outstanding greater than 12 months from the statement 
closing date. The School was able to produce documentation showing research of 
the outstanding check. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 
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4) Procedures Performed on the School's Collections (Excluding Electronic Funds Transfers): 

A. Obtain a listing of deposit sites for the fiscal period where deposits for cash/check/money 
order (cash) are prepared and management's representation that the listing is complete. 
Randomly select 5 deposit sites (or all deposit sites if less than 5). 

Performance: Obtained the listing of deposit sites from management and received 
management's representation in a separate letter that the listing is complete. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

B. For each deposit site selected. obtain a listing of collection locations and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select one collection location for each 
deposit site (e.g., 5 collection locations for 5 deposit sites), obtain and inspect written pohcies 
and procedures relating to employee job duties (inhere are no written policies or procedures, 
then inquire of employees ahout their job duties) at each collection location, and observe that 
job duties are properly segregated at each collection location such that: 

Performance: Obtained the listing of collection locations from management and received 
management's representation in a separate letter that the listing is complete. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

i. Employees responsible for cash collectioiis do not share cash drawers/registers. 
Pertbrmance: Inspected policy manuals, inquired of client as to all of the 

requirements. 
Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

ii. Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not also responsible for preparing/ 
making bank deposits, unless other etnployeeiofficial is responsible for reconciling 
collection documentation (e.g.. pre-numbered receipts) to the deposit. 

Performance: Inspected policy manuals, inquired of client as to all of the 
requirements. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

iii. Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not also responsible for posting 
collection entries to the general ledger or sttbsidiary ledgers, unless another 
employee/official is responsible for reconciling ledger postings to each other and to the 
deposit., and 

Performance: Inspected policy manuals, inquired of clieiit as to all of the 
requirements. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

iv. The employee(s) responsible for reconciling cash collections to the general ledger and/or 
subsidiary ledgers, hy revenue source andior custodial fund additions. is are) not also 
responsible for collecting cash, unless another employee/official verifies the 
reconciliation. 

Performance: Iiispected policy manuals, inquired of client as to all of the 
requirements. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 
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4) Procedures Performed on the School's Collections (Excluding Electronic Funds Transfers): 
(Continued) 

C. Obtain froin management a copy of the bond or insurance pohcy for theft covering all 
employees who have access to cash. Observe that the hond or insurance policy for theft was 
in force during the fiscal period. 

Performance: Obtained a copy of the insurance policy for theft and a listing of all 
employees covered hy the policy. The policy was in force during the fiscal period. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

D. Randomly select two deposit dates for each of the 5 bank accounts selected for Bank 
Reconciliations procedure #3A (select the next deposit date chronologically if no deposits 
were made on the dates randomly select and randomly select a deposit if multiple deposits 
are made on the same day). Alternatively, the practitioner may use a source document other 
than bank statements when selecting the deposit dates for testing. such as a cash collection 
log, daily revenue report, receipt hook, etc. Obtain supporting documentation for each of the 
10 deposits and 

i. Observe that receipts are sequentially pre-numbered. 
Performance: Obtained supporting docuinentation for the selected deposits and 

observed that receipts were sequentially pre-numbered. 
Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

ii. Trace sequentially pre-numbered receipts, system reports. and other related collection 
documentation to the deposit slip. 

Performance: Traced supporting documentation to the deposit slip. 
Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

iii. Trace the deposit slip total to the actual deposit per the bank statement. 
Performance: Traced the deposit slip to the actual deposit per the bank statement. 
Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

iv. Observe that the deposit was made within one business day of receipt at the collection 
location (within one week if the depository is more than 10 miles from the collection 
location or the deposit is less than $100 and the cash is stored securely in a locked safe 
or drawer). 

Performance: Observed that deposits tested were made within one business day of 
receipt. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

v. Trace the actual deposit per the bank statement to the general ledger. 
Pertbrmance: Traced the actual deposit per the bank statement to the general ledger. 
Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

59 



Schedule 8 
(Continued) 

5) Procedures Performed on the School's Non-Payroll Disbursements (Excluding Card 
Purchases/Payments, Tras el Reimbursements, and Petty Cash Purchases): 

A. Obtain a listing of locations that process payments for the fiscal period, and managetnent's 
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 locations (or all locations if 
less than 5). 

Pertbrmance: Obtained a listing of locations that process payments tbr the fiscal period 
from inanageinent and received management's representation in a separate letter that 
the listing is complete. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

B. For each location selected under procedure #5A. obtain a listing of those employees involved 
with non-payroll purchasing and payment functions. Obtain written policies and procedures 
relating to employee job duties (if the School has no written policies and procedures. then 
inquire of employees about their job duties), and observe that job duties are properly 
segregated such that: 

Pertbrmance: Obtained a listing of employees involved in non-payroll purchasing and 
payment functions and reviewed written policies and procedures related to employee 
job duties. Observed if the joh duties were properly segregated. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

i. At least 2 einployees are involved in initiating a purchase request, approving a pure hose, 
and placing an order or making the purchase; 

Performance: Obtained a listing of employees involved in initiating a purchase 
request, approving a purchasing, and placing an order/making a purchase. 
Observed that at least 2 employees are involved. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptioiis noted. 

.At least 2 employees are involved in processing and approving payments to vendors. 
Pertbrmance: Obtained a listing of employees involved in processing and approving 

payments to vendors. Observed at least 2 employees are involved. 
Exceptions: There were no exceptioiis noted. 

iii. The einployee responsible for processing payments is prohibited from adding/modifying 
vendor files unless another employee is responsible for periodically reviewing changes 
to vendor files. 

Performance: Obtained a listing of employees involved in processing payments to 
vendors. Inquired with management if any einployees involved are 
adding/modifying vendor files. Also, examined non-payroll disbursement policy 
which documented that the persoii responsible for processing payments does not 
add/modify vender files. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 
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5) Procedures Performed on the School's Non-Payroll Disbursements (Excluding Card 
Purchases/Payments, Tras el Reimbursements, and Petty Cash Purchases): (Continued) 

iv. Either the employeeiofficial responsible for signing checks mails the payment or gives 
the signed checks to an employee to mail who is not responsible for processing payments. 

Performance: Obtained a listing of employees involved with signing and mailing 
checks and noted proper segregation of duties. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

v. Only employees/officials authorized to sign checks approve the electronic disbursement 
(release) of funds, whether through automated clearinghouse ( ACH), electronic funds 
transfer (EFT), wire transfer, or some other electronic means. 

Performance: Obtained a listing of employees authorized to sign checks and noted 
that they are the only employees authorized to approve electronic disbursements. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

C. For each location selected under procedure #5A, obtain the School's non-payroll 
disbursement transaction population (excluding cards and travel reimbursements) and obtain 
management's representation that the population is complete. Randomly select 5 
disbursements for each location, obtain supporting docutnentation for each transaction and: 

Performance: Obtained the School's non-pavroll disbursement transaction population 
and management's representation that the population is complete. Randomly selected 
5 disbursements. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

i. Observe whether the disbursement, whether by paper or electronic means, matched the 
related original itemized invoic.e aiid supporting documentation indicates deliverahles 
included on the invoice were received hy the School. 

Performance: Observed that the 5 disbursements matched the related original 
invoice/billing statements. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

ii. Observe whether the disbursement docutnentation included evidence (e.g., initial/date, 
electronic logging) of segregation of duties tested under #5B, as applicable. 

Performance: Observed the 5 disbursements included evideiice of segregation of 
duties. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 
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5) Procedures Performed on the School's Non-Payroll Disbursements (Excluding Card 
Purchases/Payments, Tras el Reimbursements, and Petty Cash Purchases): (Continued) 

D. Using the School's main operating account and the month selected in Bank Reconciliations 
procedure #3A. randomly select 5 non-payroll-related electronic disbursements (or all 
electronic disburseinents if less than 5) and observe that each electronic disbursement was 
(a) approved by only those persons authorized to disburse funds (e.g., sign checks) per the 
School's policy, and (b) approved by the required number of authorized signers per the 
School's policy. 

Performance: Selected 5 non-payroll-related electronic disburseinents. Observed the 5 
disbursements included evidence of approval by an authorized person and approval 
by the required number of authorized signers. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

6) Procedures Performed on the School's Credit Cards, Debit Cards, Fuel Cards, Purchase 
Cards (( ards): 

A. Obtain from management a listing of all active credit cards, bank debit cards. fuel cards, and 
purchase cards (cards) for the fiscal period, including the card numbers and the names of the 
persons who maintained possession of the cards. Obtain management's representation that 
the listing is complete. 

Performance: Obtained a listing of all active credit cards. bank debit cards, fuel cards, 
and cards from management and management's representation that the listin€ is 
complete. Observed all active cards, including the card numbers and the names of the 
persons who maintain possession of the cards. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

B. Using the listing prepared by management, randomly select 5 cards (or all cards if less than 
5) that were used during the fiscal period. Randomly select one monthly statement or 
combined statement for each card (for a debit card, randomly select one monthly hank 
statement). Obtain supporting documentation, and: 

i. Observe whether there is evidence that the monthly statement or combined statement and 
supporting documentation (e.g., original receipts for credit/debit card purchases, 
exception reports for excessive fuel card usage) were reviewed and approved. in writing 
(or electronically approved) by someone other than the authorized card holder (those 
instances requiring such approval that may constrain the legal authority of certain public 
officials, such as the mayor of a Lawrason Act municipality, should not be reported): and 

Performance: Observed evidence that the statements selected and related supporting 
documentation were reviewed and approved, in writing, by someone other than 
the authorized card holder. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

62 



Schedule 8 
(Continued) 

6) Procedures Performed on the School's Credit Cards, Debit Cards, Fuel Cards, Purchase 
Cards (Cards): (Continued) 

ii. Observe that finance charges and late fees were not assessed on the selected statements. 
Performance: Observed that finance charges andior late fees were not assessed on the 

selected statements. 
Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

C. Using the monthly stateinents or combined statements selected under procedure #6B, 
excluding fuel cards, randomly select 10 transactions (or all transactions if less than 10) from 
each stateinent. and obtain supporting documentation for the transactions (e.g., each card 
should have 10 transactions suhject to inspection). For each transaction, report whether the 
transaction is supported by: 

i. An original itemized receipt that identifies precisely what was purchased. 
Performance: Observed that the transactions from the monthly statements were 

supported hy original itemized receipts that identify precisely what was purchased. 
Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

ii. Written documentation of the businessipublic purpose. 
Performance: Observed that the transactions from the monthly statements were 

supported with written docurnentation of the businessipublic purpose. 
Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

iii. Documentation of the individuals participating in meals (for ineal charges only). For 
missing receipts, the practitioner should describe the nature of the transaction and observe 
whether manageinent had a compensating control to address missing receipts. such as a 
"missing receipt statement".  that is subject to increased scrutiny. 

Performance: Observed that selected transactions for meal charges were supported by 
documentation of the individuals participating in meals. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

7) Procedures Performed on the School's Travel aud Travel-Related Expense Reimbursements 
(Excluding Card Transactions): 

A. Obtain from management a listing of all travel and travel-related expense reimbursements 
during the fiscal period and management's representation that the listing or general ledger is 
complete. Randomly select 5 reimbursements and obtain the related expense reimbursement 
forms/prepaid expense documentation of each selected reimbursement, as well as the 
supporting documentation. For each of the 5 reimbursements selected: 

Performance: Obtained a listing of all travel and travel-related expense reimbursements 
during the fiscal period from management and received management's representation 
in a separate letter that the listing is complete. Obtained the related expense 
reimbursement form and supporting documentation for the 5 reimbursements 
selected. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 
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7) Procedures Performed on the School's Travel and MIN el-Related Expense Reimbursements 
(Excluding ('ard Transactions): (Continued) 

i. If reimbursed using a per diem. observe that the approved reimbursement rate is no rnore 
than those rates established either by the State of Louisiana or the U.S. General Services 
Administration (www.gsa.gov); 

Performance: Agreed the reimbursement rate for the 5 reimbursements selected using 
a per diem rate to those rates established by State of Louisiana or the U.S. General 
Services Administration. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

ii. If reimbursed using actual costs. observe that the reimbursement is supported by an 
original itemized receipt that identifies precisely what was purchased. 

Performance: Observed that reimbursements wing actual costs were supported hy an 
original itemized receipt. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

iii. Observe that each reimbursement is supported by documentation of the business/public 
purpose Obi-  meal charges, observe that the documentation includes the names of those 
individuals participating) and other documentation required by Written Policies and 
Procedures procedure #1 A(vii ). 

Pertbrmance: Observed that each reimbursement was supported hy documentation of 
the business/public purpose (for meal charges, observed that the documentation 
included the names of those individuals participatiiig) and other documentation 
required by written policy (procedure #1A(vii)) 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

iv. ()bserve that each reimbursement was reviewed and approved. in writing, hy someone 
other than the person receiving the reimbursement. 

Performance: Observed that each reimbursement was reviewed and approved, in 
writing, by someone other than the person that received the reimbursement. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

8) Procedures Performed on the School's Contracts: 

A. Obtain from management a listing of all agreements/contracts for professional services, 
materials and supplies, leases, and construction activities that were initiated or renewed 
during the fiscal period. Alternatively, the practitioner may use an equivalent selection 
source, such as an active vendor list. Obtain management's representation that the listing is 
complete. Randoinly select 5 contracts (or all contracts if less than 5) from the listing, 
excluding the practitioner's contract, and: 

Performance: Obtained a listing of all agreements/contracts for professional services. 
materials and supplies, leases, and construction activities that were initiated or 
renewed during the fiscal period and selected 5 contracts tbr testing. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 
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8) Procedures Performed on the School's Contracts: (('ontinued) 

i. Observe whether the contract was bid in accordance with the Louisiana Public Bid Law 
(e.g., solicited quotes or bias, advertised), if required by law. 

Performance: Observed that the contracts selected did not require the bids to be in 
accordance with Louisiana Public Bid law. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

ii. Observe whether the contract was approved hy the governing body/board, if required by 
policy or law (e.g., Lawrason Act. Home Rule Charter). 

Performance: Ohserved that the contracts selected did not require board approval. 
Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

iii. If the contract was amended (e.g., change order), observe that the original contract terms 
provided for such an amendment and that amendments were made in compliance with 
the contract terms (e.g., if approval is required for any amendment, the documented 
approval). 

Performance: Observed that the contracts selected were not amended. 
Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

iv Randomly select one payment froin the fiscal period for each of the 5 contracts, ohtain 
the supporting invoice, agree the invoice to the contract terms. and observe that the 
invoice and related payment agreed to the terms and conditions of the contract. 

Performance: Randoinly selected one payment for each of the 5 contracts and obtained 
supporting invoices, agreed invoices to the contract terms, and observed invoices 
related to the payment agreed to terms and conditions of the contract. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

9) Procedures Performed on the School's Payroll and Personnel: 

A. Obtain a listing of employees and officials employed during the fiscal period and 
management's representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 employees or 
officials, obtain related paid salaries, and personnel files, and agree paid salaries to 
authorized salaries/pay rates in the personnel files. 

Performance: Obtained a listing of all employees employed during the fiscal period from 
management and received management's representation in a separate letter that the 
listing is complete. Randoinly selected 5 einployees, ohtained related paid salaries and 
personnel files, and agreed paid salaries to authorized salaries/pay rates in the 
personnel files. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

65 



Schedule 8 
(Continued) 

9) Procedures Performed on the School's Payroll and Personnel: (('ontinued) 

B. Randomly select one pay period during the fiscal period. For the 5 employees or officials 
selected under procedure 49A, obtain attendance records and leave documentation for the 
pay period. and: 

i. Observe that all selected employees or officials documented their daily attendance and 
leave (e.g., vacation, sick, compensatory). 

Performance: Selected one pay period to test leave taken during the fiscal period. 
Inspected daily attendance and leave record for proper documentation. 

Exceptions: There were iio exceptions noted. 

ii. Observe whether supervisors approved the attendance and leave of the selected 
employees or officials. 

Performance: Observed the approval of attendance and leave by the supervisors for 
the selected employeeiofficials. 

Exceptions: There were lio exceptions noted. 

iii. Observe that any leave accrued or taken durine the pay period is reflected in the School's 
cumulative leave records. 

Performance: Observed any leave accrued or taken during the pay period was 
reflected in the cumulative leave records. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

iv. Observe the rate paid to the employees or officials agrees to the authorized salarylpay 
rate found within the personnel tile. 

Performance: Observed and agreed the rate paid to employees to the authorized pay 
rate in the personnel files. 

Exceptions: There were lio exceptions noted. 

C. Obtain a listing of those employees or officials that received termination payments during 
the fiscal period and management's representation that the list is complete. Randomly select 
2 employees or officials, obtain related docuinentation of the hours and pay rates used in 
management's termination payment calculations and the School's policy on termination 
payments. Agree the hours to the employees' or officials' cumulative leave records, agree 
the pay rates to the employeesVofficials' authorized pay rates in the employeesVofficials' 
personnel files, and agree the terinination payment to the School's policy. 

Performance: Obtained a listing of those employees that received termination payments 
during the fiscal period from management and received management's representation 
in a separate letter that the listing is complete. The hours used in management's 
termination payment calculations were agreed to cumulative leave record.s, pay rates 
were agreed to authorized pay rates in the personnel files, and we agreed the 
termination payment to the School's policy. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 
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9) Procedures Performed on the School's Payroll and Personnel: (('ontinued) 

D. Obtain management's representation that employer and employee portions of third-party 
payroll related amounts (e.g., payroll taxes, retirement contributions, health insurance 
premiums, garnislunents. workers' compensation premiums, etc.) have been paid. and any 
associated forins have been filed. hy required deadlines. 

Pertbrmance: Ohtained management's representation that empkwer and employee 
portions of third-party payroll accounts have been paid, and any associated forms been 
tiled by the required deadlines. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

10) Procedure,, Performed on the School's Ethics: 

A. Using the 5 randomly selected employees/officials from Payroll and Personnel procedure 
#9A obtain ethics documentation from management. and: 

i. Observe whether the documentation demonstrates that each employe&ofticial completed 
one hour of ethics training during the calendar year as required by R.S. 42:1170. 

Performance: Inspected personnel files and ethics course completion certificates for 
the employees selected. 

Exceptions: There were ito exceptions noted. 

ii. Observe whether the School maintains documentation which demonstrates that each 
employee and official were notified of any changes to the School's ethics policy during 
the fiscal period, as applicable. 

Performance: There were no changes to the ethics policy during the year 
Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

B. Inquire and/or observe whether the School ltas appointed an ethics designee as required by 
R.S. 42:1170. 

Performance: Observed the School has appointed an ethics designee. 
Exceptions. There were no exceptions noted. 

11) Procedures Performed on the School's Debt Service: 

A. Obtain a listing of bondsinotes and other debt instniments issued during the fiscal period and 
management's representation that the listing is complete. Select all debt instnunents on the 
listing, obtain supporting docutnentation, and ohserve that State Bond Conunission approval 
was obtained for each debt instrument issued as required by Article VII, Section 8 of the 
Louisiana Constitution. 

Not applicable for not-tbr-protits. 
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11) Procedures Performed on the School's Debt Service: (Continued) 

B. Obtain a listing of bondsinotes outstanding at the end of the fiscal period and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select one bondinote, inspect debt 
covenants, obtain supporting documentation for the reserve balance and payments, and agree 
actual reserve balances and payments to those required by debt covenants (including 
contingency funds, short-lived asset funds, or other funds required by the debt covenants). 

Not applicable for not-for-profits. 

12) Procedures Performed on the School's Fraud Notice: 

A. Obtain a listing of misappropriations of public funds and assets during the fiscal period and 
management's representation that the listing is complete. Select all misappropriations on the 
listing, obtain supporting documentation, and obsenie that the School reported the 
misappropriation(s) to the legislative auditor and the district attorney of the parish in which 
the School is domiciled as required by R.S. 24:523. 

Pertbrmance: Inquired of management of any misappropriations of public funds and 
assets during the fiscal period and management's representation in a separate letter. 
None were noted. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

B. Observe that the School has posted on its premises and website, the notice required by R.S. 
24:523.1 concerning the reporting of misappropriation, fraud, waste, or abuse of public 
funds. 

Performance: Observed fraud notice posted on the premises and website concerning the 
reporting of misappropriation. fraud. waste, or abuse of public funds. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

13) Procedures Performed on the School's Information Technolop I)isaster Recovery/ 
Business C'ontinuity: 

A. Perform the following procedures, verbally discuss the results with management, and 
report "We performed the procedure and discussed the results with management". 

i. C)btain and inspect the School's most recent documentation that it has backed up its 
critical data (if there is no written documentation, then inquire of personal responsible for 
backing up critical data) and observe evidence that such backup (a) occurred within the 
past week, (b) was not stored on the School's local server or network, and (c) was 
encrypted. 

Performance: We performed the procedure and discussed the results with 
management. 
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13) Procedures Perfornled on the School's Information Technology Disaster Recovery/ 
Business Continuit► : (('ontinued) 

ii. Obtain and inspect the School's most recent documentation that it has testediverified that 
its backups can be restored (if no written documentation, inquire of personnel responsible 
for testing/verifying backup restoration) and observe evidence that the testiverification 
was successfully perthrmed within the past 3 months. 

Performance: We performed the procedure and discussed the results with 
management. 

iii. Obtain a listing of the School's computers currently in use and their related locations, 
and management's representation that the listing is coinplete. Randomly select 5 
computers and observe while manageinent demonstrates that the selected computers have 
current and active antivirus software and that the operating system and accounting system 
software in use are currently supported by the vendor. 

Performance: We performed the procedure and discussed the results with 
management. 

B. Randomly select 5 terminated employees (or all terminated employees if less than 5) using a 
list of terininated employees obtained in Payroll and Personnel procedure #9C. Observe 
evidence that the selected terminated employees have been removed or disabled from the 
network. 

Performance: We performed the procedure and discussed the results with management. 

C. Using the 5 randoinly selected employeesiofficials froin Payroll and Personnel procedure 
#9A, obtain cybersecurity training documentation from management, and observe that the 
documentation demonstrates that the following employees/officials with access to the 
agency's information technology assets have completed cybersecurity training as required 
by R.S. 42:1267. The requirements are as follows: 

• Hired before June 9, 2020 - completed the training: and 
• Hired on or after June 9, 2020 - completed the training within 3() days of 

initial service or employment. 

Not applicable for not-for-profits. 

14) Procedures Performed on the School's Prevention of Sexual Harassment: 

A. Using the 5 randomly selected employeesiofficials from "Procedures Performed on the 
School's Payroll and Personnel procedure" #9A, obtain sexual harassment training 
documentation from management. and observe the documentation demonstrates each 
employeeiofficial completed at least one hour of sexual harassment training during the 
calendar year as required by R.S. 42:343. 

Not applicable for not-for-profits. 
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Schedule 8 
(Continued) 

14) Procedures Performed on the School's Prevention of Sexual Harassment: (Continued) 

B. Observe that the School has posted its sexual harassment policy and complaint procedure on 
its website (or in a conspicuous location on the School's premises if the School does not 
have a website). 

Not applicable for not-for-profits. 

C. Obtain the School's annual sexual harassment report for the current fiscal period, observe 
that the report was dated on or before February I, and observe that the report inchides the 
applicable requirements of R.S. 42:344: 

Not applicable for not-for-profits. 

i. Number and percentage of public servants in the agency who have completed the training 
requirements. 

Not applicable for not-for-profits. 

ii. Number of sexual harassment complaints received by the agency. 
Not applicable for not-for-profits. 

iii. Number of complaints which resulted in a finding thut sexual harassment occulTed. 
Not applicable for not-for-profits. 

iv. Number of complaints in which the findinu of sexual harassment resulted in discipline or 
corrective action. 

Not applicable tbr not-for-profits. 

v. Amount of time it took to resolve each complaint. 
Not applicahle for not-tbr-profits. 

Management's Overall Response to Exceptions: 

No exceptions were noted. 
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